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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 2" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Shareholders of Avanse
Global Finance IFSC Private Limited (“the Company™) will be held on June 20, 2025 (Friday) at
02:00 PM (Time) (Indian Standard Time) through Video Conferencing (“VC™) / Other Audio
Visual Means (“OAVM™) to transact the business mentioned hereinafter.

The proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the
Company situated at Unit No GA09, Ground Floor, Pragya Accelerator, Block 15T, GIFT SEZ,
Gandhinagar - 382355, Gujarat, India which shall be deemed venue of the AGM.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors’ thereon.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Vikrant Gandhi (DIN: 10521442), who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment;

SPECIAL BUSINESS(ES):

3. To increase Authorized Share Capital of the Company and consequential alteration to
the Memorandum of Association of the Company:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13, 61 and all other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof) and the rules framed thereunder, subject to any approval, consent, no-
objection and further subject to any terms, conditions, restrictions or limitations, as may be
imposed while granting such approval, consent, no objection by any Government, Semi-
Government, Regulatory / Semi-regulatory or other authority, body or person, consent of the
Shareholders be and is hereby accorded for increase in the existing Authorised Share Capital
of the Company from Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy-Five Crore only) divided into
7,50,00,000 (Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs.
100,00,00,000 (Rupees Hundred Crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore) equity
shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing
equity shares of the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is
hereby altered by substituting the existing Clause V thereof by the following new Clause V as
under:
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V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 100,00,00,000 (Rupees Hundred Crore
only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and to take all such steps as may be
required in this connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this
Resolution and to settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.”

4. To consider and approve borrowing limit of the Company:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof), and such other statutes, acts, laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications, orders, directions, as may be applicable
(“Applicable Laws™); and further pursuant to the relevant provisions of the memorandum of
association and articles of association of the Company, the approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the
Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this Resolution) to borrow money for and on behalf of the Company,
from time to time, in Indian Rupees and / or in any foreign currency and / or digital currency:
(i) by way of availing of credit facilities (fund based and non-fund based) and all kinds of
financial assistance by all permissible methods, with or without any security and / or
guarantee, from banks, financial institutions, all India financial institutions, mutual funds,
pension funds, superannuation funds, insurance companies, non-banking finance companies,
housing finance companies, foreign institutional investors, foreign portfolio investors,
qualified institutional buyers, state industrial corporations, body corporate(s), Governments,
Municipal bodies, multinational bodies, HUFs, firms, LLPs, individuals, trusts, SPVs or any
other person or sources (“Lender(s)”) or (ii) by way of issue or conversion of any instruments
including but not limited to debentures, subordinate debts, bonds, perpetual debt instruments,
commercial papers, external commercial borrowings or any other eligible instruments to the
eligible Lenders, whether unsecured or secured by creation of mortgage, charge,
hypothecation, lien, pledge or otherwise on the Company’s assets and properties, whether
movable or immovable, notwithstanding that the monies to be borrowed, together with the
monies already borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be
obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the
aggregate, for the time being, of the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium of
the Company, provided however, that the total amount borrowed / to be borrowed by the
Company (apart from temporary loans obtained or to be obtained from the Company’s
bankers in the ordinary course of business) and outstanding at any time shall not exceed
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Rupees Five hundred Crore only (Approximately USD 58.50 Million) (“Borrowing Limit™);

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised on behalf of the
Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion,
deem necessary to give effect to these resolutions including delegation of any powers, and
with further powers on behalf of the Company to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that
may arise in this regard, without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval
of the members of the Company.”

5. To create security in connection with the borrowings of the Company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification (s), the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) and all other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules framed thereunder (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactments thereof), and such other statutes, acts, laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications, orders, directions, as may be applicable
(“Applicable Laws”); and further pursuant to the relevant provisions of the memorandum of
association and articles of association of the Company, the approval of the Members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any committee which the
Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including the
powers conferred by this Resolution) to create encumbrance, charge or security, by whatever
name called, including but not limited to by way of mortgage, pledge, hypothecation or lien
(hereinafter referred to as “the Charge™) whether in addition to or replacement of any existing
Charge or otherwise, as may be necessary from time to time, on the assets and properties of the
Company (movable and / or immovable) including but not limited to the book debts and
receivables, and further including the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking(s) of
the Company wherever situated, (hereinafter referred to as the “Assets of the Company™), both
present and future, whether presently belonging to the Company or not, including any
enhancement therein, in favour of any banks, financial institutions, all India financial
institutions, mutual funds, pension funds, superannuation funds, insurance companies, non-
banking finance companies, housing finance companies, foreign institutional investors, foreign
portfolio investors, qualified institutional buyers, state industrial corporations, body
corporate(s), Governments, Municipal bodies, multinational bodies, HUFs, firms, LLPs,
individuals, trusts, SPVs or any other person or sources (“Lender(s)”), any trustee, authorized
representative or agency and / or in favour of such person or entities as may be required under
any terms and conditions agreed by the Board while availing such borrowing or as may be
required under the Applicable Laws, to secure any payment, repayment, together with any
interest, damages, premium, pre-payment, redemption, charges, expenses or any sum of money,
as may be agreed or required to be paid by the Company in respect of the borrowings of the
Company within the aggregate borrowing limits as approved by the Members, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, from time to time;
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized on behalf of the
Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion,
deem necessary to give effect to these resolutions including delegation of any powers, and with
further powers on behalf of the Company to settle questions, difficulties or doubts that may
arise in this regard, without requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the
members of the Company.”

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited
Voo,

P

Khushboo Bhalala

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

ICSI Membership No.: A-46397
Date: April 25, 2025
Place: Gandhinagar

Registered Office:

Unit No GA09, Ground floor, Pragya Accelerator,
Block 15T IFSC SEZ, Gandhinagar, Gift SEZ,
Gujarat, India, 382355

CIN No.: U65900GJ2023PTC138316

Email: comp.global@avanse.com

Website: www.avanseglobal.com

Tel. No.:+91 22 6859 9999
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L

Explanatory Statement: Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts concerning Special
Businesses (Item No. 3, 4 & 5) to be transacted at the AGM is annexed hereto. In
addition to the above, additional information with respect to ordinary business set out
at Item No. 2 is also provided in annexure.

Convening of AGM through VC / OAVM: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, vide
its General Circular no. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 read with General Circular
no. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020
and such other circulars, notification and guidelines concerning the conducting of AGM
through VC or OAVM (collectively referred to as “MICA Circulars™), have permitted
convening the AGM through VC or OAVM without physical presence of the
Shareholders. In accordance with the MCA Circulars and applicable provisions of the
Act,'the AGM is being held through VC / OAVM.

Quorum: Pursuant to the MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Shareholders will
not be required at the AGM, and attendance of the Shareholders through VC / OAVM
will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Proxy: Since the AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, physical presence of the
Shareholders has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of
proxy(ies) by the Shareholders will not be available for the AGM and hence the proxy
form, attendance slip and route map are not annexed to this notice. However, in
pursuance of Section 113 of the Act, representatives of the Corporate and other non-
individual members may be appointed for the purpose of voting or for participation and
voting in the AGM. The Corporate Members proposing to participate at the meeting
through their representative shall forward a scanned copy of the necessary authorization
under Section 113 of the Act through email to comp.global@avanse.com before the
commencement of the AGM.

Electronic dispatch of Notice and Annual Report: In compliance with the aforesaid
MCA Circulars, notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2025 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Shareholders
whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depository(ies). Members
can request for hard copy of the Annual Report & AGM notice by sending a request at
Comp.global@avanse.com.

Voting at the AGM: In compliance with the MCA Circulars and applicable provisions
of the Act and rules framed thereunder, the Shareholders will vote on the proposed
agenda items of the Notice convening the AGM, through “Show of Hands”, unless a
demand for poll is made by any Shareholders in accordance with Section 109 of the
Act. In case a poll is ordered to be taken by the Chairman or demanded in accordance
with Section 109 of the Act, Members can cast their vote during the AGM by sending
an email to comp.global@avanse.com from their registered email addresses.

Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited

GLOBAL
FINANCE

& 1 +91 22 6859 9999 | +91 22 6859 9900 . comp.global@avanse.com 0 www.avanse.com| CIN: U65900GJ2023PTC138316
Registered address: Unit No GA 09, Ground Floor, Pragya Accelerator, Block 15T, GIFT SEZ, Gandhinagar, Gujarat 382355




w AVANS Eéé?@ o

7. Instructions for members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM:

a) The AGM shall be conducted using Google meet application. In this connection, the
Company Secretary shall send a meeting invite to the registered email addresses of the
persons entitled to attend the AGM separately. Shareholders are requested to follow
instructions as stated in this notice for participating in the AGM through VC / OAVM.

b) Facility of joining the AGM through Google meet shall open 15 minutes before the time
scheduled for the AGM and Shareholders who may like to express their views or ask
questions during the AGM may register themselves by writing to the Company at
comp.global@avanse.com. Shareholders who do not wish to speak at the AGM may
also send their queries / questions in advance by writing to the Company at the aforesaid
email address. Shareholders may raise questions during the meeting as well. However,
the Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of
speakers, as appropriate, for smooth conduct of the AGM.

¢) Shareholders who need technical assistance before or during the AGM, can contact the
undersigned at comp.global@avanse.com or at khushboo.bhalalai@avanse.com.

d) Joining the AGM:

1. Click on the meeting link sent to you by the Company Secretary.

il. You will then see the homepage of Google meet. Click on the *Join Meeting’.

iii. If you have already installed Google meet application on your device, then enter
meeting [D.

iv. Enter your name and click on ‘Join Meeting’.

\Z For better experiencing the proceedings of the AGM, Members are suggested
to download the Google Meet application. The application can be downloaded
on smartphones also by visiting the ‘Google play store’ for android users and
‘App Store’ for iOS users.

8. Registers and records: The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and
their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the Act, Register of Contracts or
arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act
and all the relevant documents referred to in the Notice, including explanatory
statement, will be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the
Shareholders from the date of circulation of this Notice upto the date of AGM and also
during the AGM. Shareholders seeking to inspect the documents may send an e-mail to
comp.global@avanse.com or Khushboo.bhalala@avanse.com.

9. In this Notice, the term Member(s) or Shareholder(s) are used interchangeably.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE ACT

The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act sets out all material facts
relating to the Special Business mentioned in Item no. 3 to 5 of the accompanying notice of the AGM
of the Company.

Item No. 3

Increase in Authorized Share Capital of the Company and consequential alteration of
Memorandum of Association of the Company:

At present, the authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy-Five
Crore Fifty only) comprising of 7,50,00,000 (Seven crore Fifty lakh) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees
Ten only) each and the paid-up share capital of the Company is Rs. 26,73,79,480/- (Rupees twenty-six
crore seventy-three Lakh Seventy-nine thousand four hundred and eighty only) comprising of
2.67.37,948 (Two crore sixty-seven lakh thirty-seven thousand nine hundred and forty-eight) equity
shares of Rs. 10/-(Rupees Ten only) each.

The Board, at its meeting held on April 25, 2025, approved the business plan for the FY 2025-26 with
a capital infusion up to Rs. 75 crore by way of rights issue. The Board in the same meeting has also
approved the proposal to increase the Authorised share capital of the Company, subject to the approval
of the Shareholders, from Rs. 75,00,00,000 (Rupees Seventy Crore only) divided into 7,50,00,000
(Seven Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 100, 00,00, 000 (Rupees
one Hundred Crore only) divided into 10,00,00,000 (Ten Crore) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten
only) each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing equity shares of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 & 61 of the Act, approval of the Members is
required for increasing the Authorised Share Capital of the Company and alteration in the Memorandum
of Association of the Company.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the special resolution set out at Item No. 3 seeking approval of the
Members for increasing the Authorised Share Capital of the Company and consequential amendment to
the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions.
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Item No. 4 and 5
To consider and approve borrowing limit of the Company and Creation of security in connection
with the borrowings of the Company:

As per the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, the Board of Directors of the Company can
exercise the power to borrow money(ies) in excess of aggregate of its paid-up share capital, free reserves
and securities premium (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the
ordinary course of business), only with the consent of the Members by a Special Resolution.

The Company is a Finance Company and primarily engaged in the business of education loan. For the
purpose of onward lending to its customers, general corporate purpose and/or meeting its working
capital requirements, it is required to borrow funds through various sources in the normal course of
business. Accordingly, the Board, in its meeting held on April 25, 2025 has approved the proposal to
consider and approve the borrowing limit of the company upto Rs. 500 Crore (Approximately USD 58.
50 Million) (USD = INR 85.45).

Further, in terms of Section 180(1)(a) of the Act, any proposal to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the
whole, or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company or where the Company owns more
than one undertaking, of the whole or substantially the whole of any of such undertaking(s), requires the
approval of the Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution. In connection with the secured borrowings,
the Company is required to create security by way of charge / hypothecation / lien of movable or
immovable properties of the Company, both present and future, in favour of the bank(s), financial
institution(s), debenture trustees, security trustees etc. in such form, manner and ranking as may be
agreed with the lenders including modification / satisfaction thereof from time to time, within the
aggregate limits as approved by the shareholders pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

The creation of charge or security may be construed as sale, lease or disposal of whole or substantially
the whole of the Company’s undertaking. Accordingly, the approval of the Shareholders is being sought
for approving the borrowing limit of the Company and to secure such borrowings by way of charge /
hypothecation of movable or immovable properties of the Company, as set out at Item Nos. 4 & 5 of
this Notice.

Accordingly, the Board recommends passing of the special resolutions set out at Item No. 4 and 5 of the
Notice for the approval of the Members of the Company.
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None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective relatives, are in
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolutions.

By Order of the Board of Directors,
For Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited

«ﬁ"‘/@ )
Khushboo Bhalala
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
ICSI Membership No.: A-46397
Date: April 25, 2025
Place: Gandhinagar-’

Registered Office:

Unit No GA09, Ground floor,

Pragya Accelerator,

Block 15T IFSC SEZ,

Gandhinagar, Gift SEZ,

Gujarat, India, 382355

CIN No.: U65900GJ2023PTC138316
Email: comp.global@avanse.com
Website: www.avanseglobal.com
Tel. No.:+91 22 6859 9999
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ANNEXURE

Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment vide this Notice, pursuant to the Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India:

a) Mr. Vikrant Gandhi

1 Director Identification Number (DIN) 10521442
2 | Name Vikrant Gandhi
3 | Father’s Name _ Mr. Virendra Rasiklal Gandhi
4 | Age 52 years
5 | Nationality Indian
6 | Experience and Qualification details Mr. Vikrant Gandhi is the Chief Financial Officer
of Avanse Financial Services Limited and also of the
Company. He holds a bachelor's degree of commerce
from R. A. Podar College of Commerce and
Economics, University of Bombay, a post graduate
diploma in treasury & forex management from the
Association of Certified Treasury Managers and
completed general management programme
(executive education) from Indian School of
Business, Hyderabad. He has cleared the final
examination held by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and has also cleared the final
examination held by the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India. He has an experience of more
than 25 Years across banking and financial services
sector. Prior to joining Avanse group, he worked
with ICICI Home Finance Company Limited, and
ICICI Bank Limited.
7 | Terms and Conditions of appointment Appointment as Director liable to retire by rotation
8 | Remuneration proposed to be paid Nil
9 | Remuneration last drawn Nil
10 | Date of first appointment on the Board February 23, 2024
11 | Shareholding in the Company 10 equity shares as the Nominee of Avanse Financial
Services Limited, the holding company
12 | Relationship with other Directors, Manager | No
and Key Managerial Personnel
13 | Number of Meetings of the Board attended | He attended 8 (Eight) meetings out of 8 Board
during the Financial Year 2023-24 meetings held during the FY2024-25.
14 | List of other Directorships as on date of this | Nil
Notice
15 | Memberships  /  Chairmanship  of | Member of Risk Management and IT Strategy
Committees of other Board Committee of Avanse Financial Services Limited.
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited (“the
Company” or “your Company”) have the pleasure in presenting its 2" Annual Report and the Audited
Financial Statements of your Company for the year ended on March 31, 2025 (“year under review” or
“the Financial Year”).

1. Financial summary and highlights:

The key highlights of the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year under review are
summarized below:

(X in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24*

Revenue from Operations 142.94 7958
Other Income 0.00 0.00
Total Income 142.94 79 58
Total Expenditure (413.95) (115.36)
Profit Before Tax (271.01) (35.78)
Profit After Tax (202.80) (26.77)
Other Comprehensive Income (142.17) 7.91

**For the period from January 11, 2023 to March 31, 2024

The above figures are extracted from the Audited Financial Statements prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 as amended from time to time and notified under Sections 129 and 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and guidelines issued by the
International Financial Services Centers Authority (“IFSCA”).

The Audited Financial Statements together with the Auditors’ Reports thereon form part of the Annual
Report of the Company for the year under review. Further, the Annual Report of the Company is
available on the website of the Company at https://www.avanseglobal.com

2. Dividend

In order to conserve resources for the future growth, the Board has not recommended any dividend oft
equity shares for the year under review.
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3. Review of Business Operations

The Company is a new age education focused Finance Company registered with IFSCA that provide
seamless and affordable education financing for every deserving Indian student. The Key highlights of
company’s performance during the year under review is as under:

e The overall AUM Stood at Rs. 13.46 Cr as on March 31, 2025 as compared to Rs. 0.17 Cr in
Previous financial year.

e During the Financial year 2024-25, Total Login cases are 993 compared to 27 cases in the
previous year and the Company disbursed 36 education loans amounting to Rs. 13.01 Cr as
compared to 1 loan of Rs 0.17 Cr in Previous financial year.

e The company recorded a total income of Rs. 1.43 Cr as compared to Rs. 0.80 Cr in Previous
financial year.

e The company has a term sheet on hand for USD 15 Million at CoF 7.75%.

e The Net worth of the company as on March 31, 2025 stood at Rs. 25.61 Cr. as compared to Rs
26.82 Cr in the previous financial year.

e The Company’s Total Provision/POS as of March 31, 2025 stands at 0.75% as compared to
0.41% as of March 31, 2024.

4. Transfer to Reserve

During the year under review, the Company has not transferred any amount to any reserves.
5. Material Events during the year

There were no material events during the year under review.
6. Share Capital

a) Authorized Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 75,00,00,000/-
divided into 7,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

During the year under review, the Company:

e Increased its Authorised share capital from Rs. 27,50,00,000/ to Rs. 75,00,00,00 vide the
resolution passed by the members of the Company in their 1% Annual General Meeting held
on September 30, 2024.

b) Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
As on March 31, 2025, the Company’s issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital was
Rs. 26,73,79,480/- divided into 2,67,37,948 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
2

During the year under review, there were no changes in the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share
Capital of the Company.
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As on the date of this Report, the entire shareholding of the Company is held in dematerialized
mode.

7. Meetings of the Board

The Board of your Company meets at regular interval to discuss and decide on the Company’s
performance, strategies and for various other purposes. During the year under review, the Board met 8
(Eight) times. The meetings of the Board were held on April 25, 2024, May 27, 2024, July 11, 2024,
August 9, 2024, October 18, 2024, November 18, 2024, January 15, 2025, and February 21, 2025.

All the meetings were held in a manner that not more than 120 days lapsed between two consecutive
meetings. The required quorum was present at all the above meetings.

The Detailed attendance of the Board members for each Board and committee meeting is part of
Corporate Governance report (Annexure-I) which is part of this Board report.

8. Change in the Nature of Business
During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the Company.
9. Material Changes and Commitments affecting the Financial Position of the Company

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company from
the end of the financial year up to the date of this Report.

10. Details of Holding / Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associate Companies

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary company of Avanse Financial Services Limited (“AFSL”),
a Non-Banking Finance Company (“NBFC”) registered with the Reserve Bank of India, which is a
subsidiary company of Olive Vine Investment Ltd, a private company limited by shares, registered
under the laws of Republic of Mauritius.

Your Company does not have any subsidiary company, joint venture or associate during the year under
review.

11. Internal Financial Controls
The Company has well-established internal control systems in place that is commensurate with the
nature of its business and size, scale and complexity of its operations. The internal financial controls

with reference to the financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company are adequate.

3
During the year under review, no material or serious observation were received from the Auditors of
the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.
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12. Public Deposits

Your Company neither accepted nor renewed any deposits from the public during the year under review
or in the past.

13. Auditors:
a) Auditors, their reports and Notes to Financial Statements

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Act and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, M/s. Sharp & Tannan, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number: 109982W issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India) has been appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the 1 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company held on September 30, 2024
to hold office from the conclusion of the 1% AGM till the conclusion of the 6" AGM of the
Company.

The Statutory Auditors’ report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks
or disclaimer.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee or the Board
of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Act during the financial period under review.

b) Secretarial Auditors and their report
The provisions of the Secretarial Audit as prescribed under Section 204 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.

¢) Cost Records and Auditors
The provisions of Cost Records and Cost Audit as prescribed under Section 148 of the Act are not
applicable to the Company.

14. Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time, the Annual Return of
the Company as at March 31, 2025 (MGT-7) can be obtained by the members of the Company by
making a specific request for the same.

15. Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

As your Company is a Finance Company, the particulars regarding conservation of energy and
technology absorption as required to be disclosed pursuant to provision of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act
read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not relevant to its activities. However, adequaté
measures have been initiated for conservation of energy wherever possible.
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16. Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The functional currency of your company is USD, and the reporting currency is INR. Hence, for the
purpose of the reporting of foreign exchange earnings and outgo, any earning/ outgo in currency other
than USD is reported herein.

The Company generates its revenue from operations and investment income in USD only.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review: Foreign Exchange Earnings — Nil

Foreign Exchange Outgo — USD 3,08,933.88/- *

*(Rs. 1,38,58,894.78 opening balance in our SNRR Account (equivalent to USD 1,63,956.05/-), Rs
2,61,13,596.00 /— credited into Special Non-—Resident Rupee Account (“SNRR Account”) for
incurring expenses out of which we have expended Rs. 2,77,29,556.93 (equivalent to USD
3,28,051.32/-) during the period and balance amount of Rs. 1,22,42,933.85 (equivalent to USD
1,44,838.61/-) is still lying to our SNRR Account)

17. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMPs”)

a) Composition of the Board
The composition of the Board is in accordance with Section 149 of the Act. As on March 31, 2025
the Board of the Company comprises of three Directors, consisting of one Whole Time Director.
The Directors, individually and collectively, bring in a wide range of skills and experience to the
Board.

The Board of Directors of the Company as on March 31, 2025 comprises of the following

Name of the Director DIN Designation

Mr. Amit Gainda 09494847 Whole Time Director
Mr. Vikrant Gandhi 10521442 Director & CFO

Mr. Yogesh Rawat 09857254 Non-executive Director

b) Retirement by rotation of Directors

Pursuant to Section 152 of the Act read with the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Vikrant Gandhi (DIN: 10521442), Non-executive Director, retires from the Board by rotation. The
Board of Directors have, subject to receipt of consent for re-appointment, recommended the re-
appointment of Mr. Vikrant Gandhi.

The information pertaining to Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Act,
is provided in the notice of the ensuing AGM.
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¢) Fit and Proper Criteria
All the directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the fit and proper criteria as
prescribed under the Corporate Governance Guidelines of IFSCA. The Directors have also
confirmed that they have neither incurred any disqualification referred to in Section 164 of the Act
for being Director of the Company nor have attracted any criteria prescribed in Section 167(1) of
the Act which could lead to vacation of their office as Director.

d) Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”)
As on March 31, 2025, Mr. Amit Gainda, Whole Time Director, Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, Chief
Financial Officer and Ms. Khushboo Bhalala, Company Secretary are the KMP of the Company in
terms of Section 2 (51) of the Act.

During the year under review, there was no change in the KMP of the Company.
18. Annual Performance Evaluation of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on January 15, 2025 have approved the
Board Evaluation matrix.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance,
Board committees and individual Directors for the year under review. For the above purpose, a formal
mechanism has been adopted to evaluate the performance of the Board, the committees thereof
individual Directors of the Board. The evaluation is based on criteria, which include, amongst others,
providing strategic perspective, time devoted and preparedness for meetings, quality, quantity and
timeliness of the flow of information between the Board Members and the management, contribution
at the meetings, effective decision-making ability, role and effectiveness of the committees etc. The
Directors duly completed and submitted the questionnaire providing feedback on functioning of the
Board as a whole and committees thereto.

Basis the above, the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors was evaluated
by the Board. The Board of the Company is satisfied with the functioning of the Board and its
committees, and the contribution of the Directors in their individual capacities.

19. Policies and Codes

In terms of the applicable provisions of the IFSCA circulars / regulations / guidelines including the
provisions of the Act and other applicable laws applicable and as a part of good corporate governance
to ensure strong internal controls, the Board has adopted several codes / policies / guidelines and has
also reviewed the same from time to time, which among others include the following:

(a) Internal Guidelines of Corporate Governance
In terms of IFSCA’s Guidelines on Corporate Governance and Disclosure Requirements for a Financg
Company, the Company has in place Board approved the Corporate Governance code.
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(b) Code of Conduct for the Board and Senior Management Personnel (“SMPs”)
Pursuant to the Guidelines on Corporate Governance and Disclosure Requirements for a Finance
Company issued by IFSCA, the Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors
and the SMPs of the Company which is part of the corporate governance code of the company. The
Code provides guidance to the Board and SMPs on the matters relating to professional conduct, ethics
and governance.

(¢) Vigil Mechanism
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014, the provisions pertaining to vigil mechanism was not applicable to the
company during the year under review.

(d) Policy on Prevention of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
As at the end of year under review, your Company employed less than 10 (ten) employees and hence,
the provisions of having a policy and other compliance requirements under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013, is not applicable to the
company.

20. Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”)

The Company is a specified IFSC company and hence, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company for a period of five years from the date of commencement
of business.

21. Particulars of Loans given, Investments made, Guarantees given or Security provided

The Company is registered as a Specified IFSC Company, hence particulars of loans, guarantees and
investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company.

22. Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

During the year under review, all transactions entered into by the Company with related parties were in
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188
of the Act. Hence, there are no details to be disclosed in Form AOC - 2 pursuant to Section 134(3)(h)
of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Requisite approval of Audit committee and Board is obtained for all the related party transactions. The
details of transactions with related parties of the company for the year under review forms part of the
notes to the financial statements, which form part of this Annual Report.
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23. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act and to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the
information and explanations obtained from the operating management, Directors of the Company state
that:-

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the period ended March 31, 2025, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

b) the directors have selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2025 and of the profit of the Company for that
period;

¢) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the annual accounts for the period have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively;

f) proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of the applicable laws are in place and the
same are adequate and operating effectively.

24. Compliance with Secretarial Standards of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India

The Company is in compliance with the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors
and the Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

25. Other Disclosures

In terms of applicable provisions of the Act, the Company discloses and confirms that during the year

under review:

(i)  there was no issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under
any scheme;

(i) there was no scheme for provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees or
by trustees for the benefit of employees;

(iii) there was no public issue or bonus issue of any securities by the Company;

(iv) there was no issue of shares with differential rights;

(v) no significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Hon’ble Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future;

(vi) there were no proceedings for Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against the Company; and

. . . . 8
(vii) there was no failure to implement any Corporate Action.

Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited
Q : +9122 6859 9999 | +91 22 6859 9900 : comp.global@avanse.com & : Www.cwcmse.coml CIN: U65900GJ2023PTC138316
Registered address: Unit No GA 09, Ground Floor, Pragya Accelerator, Block 15T, GIFT SEZ, Gandhinagar, Gujarat 382355




/ e AVAN S E[' am

FINANCE
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Your Directors take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the support and co-operation
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited

Sd/ Sd/-
Mr. Vikrant Gandhi Amit Gainda
Director & Chief Financial Officer Whole Time Director
(DIN: 10521442) (DIN: 09494847)
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 25, 2025
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Annexure I
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Corporate Governance is the framework by which the Company ensures transparency in all its dealings and whereby
various stakeholders’ interests are balanced. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to achieve
business excellence by enhancing the long-term welfare of all its stakeholders. The Company recognises its role as
a corporate citizen and endeavours to adopt the best practices and the highest standards of Corporate Governance
through transparency in business ethics and accountability to its customers, government and others.

2. Board of Directors

Your Company has a broad-based Board which consists of eminent individuals from industry, management,
technical, financial and banking backgrounds. The composition and strength of the Board is reviewed from time to
time to ensure that it remains aligned with statutory as well as business requirements.

As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised of 3 (three) directors consisting of 1 (one) Whole Time Director.

The Board has no dedicated Chairman. There is no inter-se relationship between the directors of the Company and
all the directors hold 10 (ten) shares or convertible instruments of the Company as a nominee shareholder of Avanse
Financial Services Limited.

During the year under review, the Board met 8 (eight) times. During the year under review, the Board met 8 (Eight)
times. The meetings of the Board were held on April 25, 2024, May 27,2024, July 11, 2024, August 9, 2024, October
18, 2024, November 18, 2024, January 15, 2025, and February 21, 2025.

The details of each member of the Board as on March 31, 2025, attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings
and at the last AGM, along with the number of Directorship / Committee Membership are as given below:

Sr. | Name of No. of Other Committee Positions No. of Whether
No. | Director, DIN, Directorship Held! Board attended
Designation, Member Chairperson | meeting of| last AGM
Category and (including the of the
Date of as Company | Company?
Appointment Chairperso attended
n) during the
year
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1 Mr. Amit Gainda 1 3 3 5 No
(DIN: 09494847) (Managing
Whole Time Director &
Director CEO of
11/01/2023 Avanse
Financial
Services
Limited)
2 Mr. Vikrant Gandhi - 3 - 7 Yes

(DIN: 10521442)
Non-executive
Director and
Chief Financial
Officer
21/02/2024

3 Mr. Yogesh - 3 - 8 Yes
Rawat

(DIN: 09857254)
Non-executive
Director
11/01/2023

' Only Membership in the Company committees is considered here.

The core skills / expertise / competencies as required in the context of the business, operations, governance and
management of the Company, including of the industry in which the Company operates and those assessed to be
available with the Board have been identified by the Board of Directors. All the Directors possess skills / expertise /
competence / knowledge in the areas like Industry Expertise, Financial knowledge, Compliance and Corporate
Governance, Risk Management, Strategic Planning, Investor Relationship, Stakeholder Centricity and Customer
experience. The above is only indicative and the Board members possess / have demonstrated expertise, skills,
knowledge and competencies in other areas as well which can be deduced from their respective profile which is
accessible on the website of the Company.

The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, experience,
expertise and diversity.

Familiarisation Programme:

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IFSCA, the Company has
adopted a Familiarisation Programme. The familiarisation programme aims to provide the Directors with the socio-
economic environment, in which the Company operates, the business model, the operational and financial
performance of the Company, to update the Directors on a continuous basis on significant developments so as to
enable them to take well-informed decisions in a timely manner.
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3. The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for the Board Members and Senior Management of the Company and
the same is part of the Corporate Governance Code of the Company which is available on the website of the Company
at https://www.avanseglobal.com/website/pdf/Corporate Governance Code 18 10 2024.pdf.

Committees of the Board

Your Board has constituted committees with specific terms of reference as per the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Guidelines of IFSCA and other applicable provisions. The Board has accepted all recommendations of
the Committees of the Board during the Financial Year under review. The Committees play a vital role in the
effective compliance and governance of the Company in line with their specified and distinct terms of reference and
role and responsibilities. The minutes of the Meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for its perusal
on a regular basis.

The Committees of the Board are elaborated hereunder:
a) Audit Committee

Although as per the provisions of Section 177 (1) of the Act do not mandate the Company to have an Audit
committee, the Company has decided to have an Audit Committee as a prudent Corporate Governance measure on
voluntary basis.

All the Members of the Audit Committee are financially literate. The Chairperson and Members of the Audit
Committee have accounting or related financial management expertise.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Corporate Governance Guidelines and as
required by other applicable laws. The said terms of reference are provided in the Corporate Governance Code of
the Company which is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.avanseglobal.com/website/pdf/Corporate_Governance_Code 18 10 2024.pdf.

During the year under review, the Committee met (Seven) times i.e. on April 25, 2024, May 27, 2024, July 11,
22024, August9, 2024, October 18, 2024, November 18, 2024 and January 20 and 15, 2025.

The composition of the Audit Committee as on March 31, 2025 and the details of attendance of each Committee
Member at the aforesaid meetings is as follows:

Sr. Name of Member No. of Meetings
No

Held during the Tenure | Attended
1 Mr. Amit Gainda, Whole Time Director and Chairperson 7 4
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Sr. Name of Member No. of Meetings
No
Held during the Tenure | Attended
2 Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, Director, Chief Financial Officer and 7 7
Member
3 Mr. Yogesh Rawat, Non-Executive Director and Member 7 7

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee could not attend the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on September 30, 2024 (“AGM 2024”). However, he had authorised Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, member of the
Committee, to attend the AGM 2024 and represent the Committee thereat.

The Statutory Auditors of your Company are invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings. In addition, other
Senior Management Personnel are also invited to the Audit Committee meetings from time to time, for providing
such information as may be necessary. The Audit Committee monitors and effectively supervises your Company’s
financial reporting process with a view to provide accurate, timely and proper disclosures and maintain the integrity
and quality of financial reporting.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the internal controls put in place to ensure that the
accounts of your Company are properly maintained and that the accounting transactions are in accordance with
prevailing laws and regulations. There were no material discrepancy or weakness in the internal control system of
your Company.

b) Risk Management Committee (“RMC”)

This Committee is constituted on a prudent governance basis to formalise a process for risk identification, risk
assessment, risk mitigation and reporting. The terms of reference are provided in the Corporate Governance Code of
the Company which is available on the website of the Company at
https://www.avanseglobal.com/website/pdf/Corporate Governance Code 18 10 2024.pdf.

During the year under review, the Committee met 3 (three) times i.e. on April 25, 2024, October 18, 2024, and
January 15, 2025.

The composition of the RMC as on March 31, 2025 and the details of attendance of each Committee Member at the
above said meetings are as follows:

Sr. Name of Member No. of Meetings

No Held during the Attended
tenure

1 Mr. Amit Gainda, Whole Time Director and Chairperson 3 3
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Sr. Name of Member No. of Meetings
No Held during the Attended
tenure
2 Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, Director, Chief Financial Officer and 3 3
Member
3 Mr. Yogesh Rawat, Non-Executive Director and Member 3 3
4 Mr. Ankit Tater, Lead — Credit and Operations and Member 3 3

¢) IT Strategy Committee (“ITSC”):

This Committee is constituted on a prudent governance basis to control and mitigate the prevalent Information
Technology Risk. The terms of reference are provided in the Corporate Governance Code of the Company which is
available on the website of the Company at
https://www.avanseglobal.com/website/pdf/Corporate Governance Code 18 10 2024.pdf.

During the year under review, the Committee met 2 (two) times i.e. on April 25, 2024 and January 15, 2025.

The composition of the ITSC as on March 31, 2025 and the details of attendance of each Committee Member at the
above said meetings are as follows:

Sr. Name of Member No. of Meetings
No Held during the |  Attended
Tenure

1 | Mr. Amit Gainda, Whole Time Director and Chairperson 2 2
Mr. Vikrant Gandhi, Director, Chief Financial Officer and 2 2
Member

3 | Mr. Yogesh Rawat, Non-Executive Director and Member 2 2

4 | Mr. Ankit Tater, Lead — Credit and Operations and Member 2 2
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the statement
of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (‘the financial
statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, the loss
and total comprehensive loss, changes in equity, and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor’s report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the board’s report including annexures

thereto, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also;

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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»  Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

1 Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the
central government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the Annexure A the statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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(c)  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)  In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31,2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of
the Act;

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
report in Annexure B; our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting;

(g8)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year; and

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the auditor’s report in accordance
with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — refer note 29 to the financial statements;

it~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses — refer note 30(k) to the
financial statements; and

i There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company — refer note 30(i) to the financial
statements.

iv._ (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entity (‘Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries — refer note 30(d) to the financial statements;

(b) Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest
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in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries - refer note 30(e) to the financial
statements;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clauses (i} and (ii) of rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v As stated in note 30(m) to financial statements, the Company has not paid any
dividend during the year.

vi Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the
course of our audit we did not come across any instance of an audit trail feature
being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the company as
per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration no.109982W

P & TANY
Sl SN
f{f%® ~ CHARTERED ™ &%\
= % ACCOUNTANTS /. J/
72 4™

e Firdosh D. Buchia
TR 4 Partner
Mumbai, April 25, 2025 Membership no. 038332

UDIN: 25038332BMLAO02782
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment;

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets;

(b) Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification;

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable properties. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right of
use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company; and

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(if) (a) The Company does not hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3 (ii) (a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no working capital limits
have been sanctioned from banks or financial institutions during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made
any investment, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(iii)(a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Act are applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(v) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company
has not accepted deposits as per the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the
rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the central government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act for the
products/services of the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, and cess have been regularly deposited during
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, and
cess were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, there were no statutory dues in respect of goods
and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material
statutory dues as at March 31, 2025, which have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(vili)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, there are no transactions not recorded in the
books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not borrowed any funds from any lender during the year. Accordingly,
paragraphs 3(ix) (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year;

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the central government; and

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistleblower
complaints were received during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company, '

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xiii)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  (a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provisions of the Act. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xiv) (a) and
(b) are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions
with directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)  (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934;

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid
Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (‘CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(xvi)(c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company; and

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group does not have
any CIC.

(xvii)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has incurred a cash loss of Rs. 126.43 lakhs
in the current financial year and incurred a cash loss of Rs. 23.35 lakhs during the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of
the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further
state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to comply with the requirements of provisions of section 135 of the Act. Accordingly,

ZARRE AN paragraphs 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.
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(xxi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required
to prepare consclidated financial statements. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

For Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration no.109982wW

Firdosh D. Buchia
Partner

Mumbai, April 25, 2025 Membership no. 038332
UDIN: 25038332BMLAOQ2782

Assurance | Consulting | GRC | Tax

Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Coimbatore | Delhi | Goa | Hyderabad | Mumbai | Pune | Vadodara



SHARP &
TANNAN

chartered accountants

ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of our report of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Avanse Global Finance
IFSC Private Limited (‘the Company’) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those standards
and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.
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Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the guidance note on audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting issued
by the ICAL.

For Sharp & Tannan
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration no.109982W

%W”‘

{

. ll U /
% LACC OL.‘NT&!\‘E/J_

D v Firdosh D. Buchia

davNExe, W Partner
Mumbai, April 25, 2025 Membership no. 038332
UDIN: 25038332BMLAOQ2782

ARP & Tq A
S o)
* " CHARTERED ™ &

Assurance | Consulting | GRC | Tax

Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Coimbatore | Delt yoa | Hyderabad | Mumbai | Pune | Vadodara



AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
I Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,104.64 2,496.64
(b) Loans 5 1,336.11 17.14
(c) Trade receivables 6 0.95 -
(d) Other financial assets 7 2.81 2.74
2,444.51 2,516.52
[} Nen-Financial assets
(a) Current tax assets BA 14.96 7.07
(b) Deferred tax assets 8B 77.21 9.00
(c) Property, plant and equipment 9 3.14 1.31
(d) Other intangible assets 9 198.33 21312
(e) Other non-financial assets 10 24.27 48.60
317.91 279.10
Total Assets 2,762.42 2,795.62
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
| Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables "
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 194.89 113.70
(b) Other financial liabilities 12 10.82 -
205.71 113.70
1] Non-Financial Lizbilities
(a) Provisions 13 2.50 -
(b} Other non-financial liabilities 14 14.68 0.22
17.18 0.22
1] EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 15 2,673.79 2,673.79
(b) Other equity 16 (134.26) 7.91
Total equity 2,539.53 2,681.70
Total Liabilities and Equity 2,762.42 2,795.62
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 1to 36

In terms of our report attached
For Sharp & Tannan

Chartered Accountants

Firm's registration no.109982W

Firdo
Partner
Membership no. 038332
Place : Mumbai

Date : 25/04/2025
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Amit Gainda

Whole Time Director
DIN - 09494847
Place : Mumbai

Vikrant Gandhi
Director & CFO
DIN - 10521442
Place : Mumbai
Date : 25/04/2025
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Yogesh Rawat
Director

DIN - 09857254
Place : Mumbai
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Khushboo Bhalala
Company Secretary
M no. 46397
Place : Gandhinagar




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the period from
Particulars NoteNo.[ Fortheyearended |, - 44,2023 to March
March 31, 2025
31, 2024
I Income
Revenue from operations
(a) [Interestincome 17 140.08 79.54
(b) |Fees and commission income 18 2.86 0.04
Total revenue from operations 142.94 79.58
(c) Other income " -
Total income 142.94 79.58
I Expenses
(a) |lmpairment on financial instruments 19 9.94 0.07
(b) |Employee benefits expense 20 80.38 4275
(c) |Depreciation and amortisation expense 9 116.96 12.43
(d) |Other expenses 21 206.67 60.11
Total expenses g 413.95 115.36
Il |Profit before tax (271.01) (35.78)
IV  |Tax expense
(a) |Current tax - -
(b) |Deferred tax 8B (68.21) (9.00)
Total tax expense (68.21) (9.00)
v Net profit / (loss) for the period (202.80) (26.77)
vi Other comprehensive income
(A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans - -
(ii) Income tax on above - -
Subtotal (A) - -
(B) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 60.63 34.69
(i) Income tax on above = -
Subtotal (B) 60.63 34.69
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) (A+B) 60.63 34.69
VIl |Total comprehensive income/ (loss) (142.17) 7.9
VIl  |Earnings per equity share
(Face value of Rs. 10/~ each)
Basic (Rs.) {0.76) (0.17)
Diluted (Rs.) (0.76) (0.17)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 110 36
In terms of our report attached
For Sharp & Tannan For Avanse Globaﬁ!&ce IFSC Private Limited
Chartered Accountants 3
Firm's regFStT)UJ‘%U no.109982W \(C\ * A
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Firdésh D. Buchia B OUNTANTS /. Amit Gainda Yogesh Rawat
Partner P> Whole Time Director Director
Membership no. 038332 - DIN - 09494847 DIN - 09857254
Place : Mumbai Place ; Mumbai Place : Mumbai
: 25/04/202
Date 2025 ! Lfoa E
\ Vikrant Gandhi Khushboo Bhalala
Director & CFO Company Secretary
" DIN - 10521442 M no. 46397
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Date : 25/04/2025




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED _
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the period from
Particulars ik o ";:";:2";" March | sanuary 11, 2023 to March
i 31, 2024
A Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (271.01) (35.78)
Adjustment for:
Interest income on loans (73.31) (0.33)
Interest income on fixed deposit (66.78) (79.22)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 116.96 12.43
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipments 0.15 -
Operating loss before working capital changes (293.99) (102.90)
Operational cash flows from interest
Interest received on loans 14,73 0.06
Working capital changes
Adjustment for:
(Increase) / Decrease in loans (1,260.39) (16.88)
(Increase) / Decrease in other non-financial assets 2433 (48.60)
(Increase) / Decrease in current tax assets (7.89) (7.07)
(Increase) / Decrease in trade receivables (0.95) -
(Increase) / Decrease in financial assels (0.07) {2.74)
(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables 92.01 113.70
(Decrease) / Increase in non financial liabilities 16.97 0.22
Cash (used in) operations (1,415.25) (64.21)
Direct taxes paid (net) - -
Net cash (used in) operating activities (1,415.25) (64.21)
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets (104,14} (226.86)
Interest received on fixed deposits 66.78 79.22
Net cash (used in) / generated from investment activities {37.36) (147.64)
4 Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share (including share premium) - 2,673.79
Net cash generated from financing activities - 2,673.79
Effect of exchange fluctuation on translation reserve 60.63 34.69
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (1,391.98) 2,496.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 2,496.64 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1,104.64 2,496.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period comprises of:
Balance with banks
- In Current accounts 151.62 569,85
- In Fixed Deposit- (Original maturity of 3 months or less) 953.02 1,926.79
Total 1,104.64 2,496.64
In terms of our report attached
For Sharp & Tannan For Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private lelted
Chartered Accountants
Firm's mgistw.wsgszw
e e A= @L i’
/ 1
Firdosh D. Buchia Amit Gainda Yogesh Rawat
Partner Whole Time Director Director
Membership no. 038332 DIN - 09494847 DIN - 09857254

Place : Mumbai
Date : 25/04/2025

Place : Mumbai

ikrant Gandhi
Director & CFO
DIN - 10521442
Place : Mumbai
Date : 25/04/2025

Place : Mumbai
NM'

Khushboo Bhalala

Company Secretary

M no. 46397
Place : Gandhinagar




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity as at March 31, 2025

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Changes in equity |Restated balance at the| Changes in equity
Particulars i‘;;??;:zit share capital dueto | beginning of the |share capital during MB::::;: 32;2‘5
) prior period error current period the period* *
Equity Share Capital 2,673.79 - 2,673.79 - 2,673.79
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Changes in equity |Restated balance at the| Changes in equity
Particulars Salance o ot share capital due to beginning of the  [share capital during| _C2/ance as at
11-Jan-2023 » 5 L March 31, 2024
prior period error current period the period
Equity Share Capital - - - 2,673.79 2,673.79
*refer note no. 15
B. OTHER EQUITY
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI
Particulars Total Other equity

Foreign Currency

ined &
Ratainad samings Transalation reserve

Opening balance as on April 1, 2024 (26.77) 34.69 7.91

Profit/(Loss) for the period (202.80) - {202.80)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period ended R

Mar 31, 2025 60.63 60.63

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (202.80) 60.63 (142.18)
Closing balance as on March 31, 2025 (229.57) 95.31 (134.26)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Reserves and Surplus Items of OCI
Tot: i
Particulars : Foreign Curmeocy otal Other equity
Retained earnings e
Tran n reserve
Opening balance as on January 11, 2023 - - -
Profit/(Loss) for the period (26.77) - {26.77)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period ended ”
Mar 31, 2024 A453 =
Total Comprehensive Income for the period (26.77) 34.69 7.91
Closing balance as on March 31, 2024 {26.77) 34.69 7.91
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the purpose financial statements 1 to 36
In terms of our report attached
For Sharp & Tannan For Avanse Global Finance IFSC Private Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm's registration no.109982W
reg e C o
0~ \ 4 ,
W ; sty
\
Firdesh D. Buchia Amit Gainda Yogesh Rawat
Partner Whole Time Director  Director
Membership no, 038332 DIN - 09494847 DIN - 09857254
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date : 25/04/2025

ikrant Gandhi Khushboo Bhalala
Director & CFO Company Secretary
v~ DIN - 10521442 M no. 46397
Place : Mumbai Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 25/04/2025




AVANSE GLO'B_AL FINANCE iFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate Information

Avanse Global Finance IFSC Limited {the ‘Company') is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 on 11 January 2023 The Company is primarily engaged in the busin_es_s of financing Education Loans
to Students in foreign currericy. The Company is registered with Ministry of Corporate Affairs (Corporate Identity Number (CIN)
UB5900GJ2023PTC138318). The Company is also registered with [FSCA (International Financial Service Centre Authority) vide
Certificate of Registration (IFSC/FC/2023-24/0002). IFSCA is a unified authority-for the development and reguiation of financia
products, finangial services and financial institutions in. GIFT IFSC. '

The registered office of the Company is situated at Unit No: GADS, Ground floor, Pragya Accslerator, Block 15T, IFSC SEZ, Gift
SEZ, Gandhinagar,Gujarat, India, 382355

Materisl Accounting Policies

2. Basis of Accounting and Preparation of financial statements

2.1 Basis of Preparation of financial statements

2.2. Presentation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared on an’accrual basis following the historical cost convention, in‘accordance with the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under-Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, ('the Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act, as armended from time to time.

The Company presents its balance sheet in order-of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery-or settlement within 12 months after
the reporting date and more-than 12 months after the reporting date is presented in Note 23.

2.3. Functional and Presentation Currency _
US Daliar (USD) is the currency of the primary economic environment in-which the -Company operates and hence the functional
currency of the Company.

Parent Company presents if_s_. financial stateiments. As the Parent Company'pres‘ents its financial statements in Indian Rupses

(INR), the Company’s financial statemerits are translated into Indian Rupees {INR). Addit_fona!_ly, the same s in compliarice with
income: Tax-Act, 1961 and other statuiory jaws.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.4. Forsign Currency Transaction and balance

A foreign currency transaction shali be recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying to the fereign currency
amount the spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the fransaction.

A). At the'ehd of each reporting period

a) foreign currency monetary items shall be translated using the closing rate;:
b) non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreigr currency shall be translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction; and

¢) non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a-foreign currency shall be translated using-the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was. determined

B) Translation to presentation currency (Foreign Currency Translation Reserve)

For the. purpose of p_r_e_p'ar_atie_n of financial statements in Indian Rupses (INR), the assets and liabilities of the Company are
translated into Indian Rupees (INR) using-the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and its Statement of Profit and Loss
is: translated using an average rate to translate income and expénse items. The exchange differences arising from the translation of
financial statements of the Company is recagnised in Other Comprehensive Income (OC1) and is presented within other squity as
foreign currency translation teserve. '

C) Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historicai cost basis, éxcept for ceftain financial instrumenits that dre measured
at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting poficies below.

Historical costis generally based on the fair value-of {he consideration given in ‘exchange for goods and services.

D) Rounding Off

All. amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakh up to.two decimal places, unless otherwise indicated.

2.5 Use of Estimates and judgements:

[n preparing these financial staterhents, management has made Judgements -estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilitiés, income and éxpenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The management believes' that these. estlmates are prudent and reasonable and are based upon the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions as an the reporting date, Actual results could differ from these sstimates and différencés
betweén actual results and estimatés are recognised in the periods in which the results/actions are- known or materialised.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
2.8, Valuation governance framework

The objective of valuation tech niques is to arrive a fair value measurement that reflects price that would be receiv'ed_' to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markat participants at the measurernent date, regardiess of whether
that price is diréctly observable or estimated using another vaiuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asselora |la!}_l|!iy_:
the Company takes into.account the: characteristics of the asset or liability that market participants would take those characteristics
into aceount when pricing the assetl or liability at the measurement date, Further, information about the assumptions made _.'”
measuring fair values is included in Note 24 . financial instruments - fair valuss, risk-management and impairment of financial
assets,

Valuation principles

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised o Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to f:_h_e.fair
value measurements. are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

a) Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asséts or liabilities that the Company can access at
measurement date _

b} Leve) 2 inputs aré inputs, other thari quoted prices iricluded within- level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indifectly; and

¢) Level 3 inputs are unobservabie inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities

2.7. Maintenance of Books of Accounts

The-Company has complied with the Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 amended on August 5, 2022 relating to
maintenarice of electronic books of accaunt and other relevant books and papers. The Cofmpany’s books of account and. r.e;levant _
books and papers are accessible:in India at all times and backup of accounts'and other relevant books and papers are maintained
in electronic moade within (ndia and kept in servers physically focated in [ndia on daily basis.

With respect to maintenance of audif trail in respect of accounting software used by the Company pursuant {o the requiremsnts of
the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014..

AGFIPL - The Company uses Oracle Fusicn for generai ledger accounting, a software for loar management.and'iaccot_;mt.ing_ .
(Pennant) and a software operated by a third-party service-provider for maintaining the: payroll records (Darwinbox). The information
regarding audit trail (edit log) feature in respect of these software is as follows:

For thé year ended March.31, 2025 - a: During FY25, the Company had migrated to Oracle Fusion from the Tally software for
general ledger accounting. Tally softwars for general ledger accounting which has a feature of recording audit trail {edit log} faclity
however it was not -:enab_iéd In pre-migration periad and the software for loan management (Pennant) and accounting has.a.feature
of recording audit trail which operated throughout the year for all relevant transaction recorded therein,

b. Oracle Fusion had & feature of recording audit trail and"‘it-op.erated for the entire period posf.m_igratioh. The payroll software:had a

feature of recording audit trail which operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded therein, There were no.
instances. of the audit trail feature being tampered with in relaticri to these software,

For the year ended March 31, 2024 - The Company has used an accounting software (Tally) for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility, but the feature of audit trail (edit log) faciiity was not enabled during the
accounting period




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements forthe year ended March 31, 2025

2.8 Accounting Standards {Amendment to ind AS)

The Ministry of Carporate Affairs has notifed the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Amendment Rule, 2023 dated 31 March
2023 to-amend the following: Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or-after 1 Aprit 2023. The Company applled
for these first time. amendments,

2.8.1 Definition of accounting estimates - Amendment to Ind AS:8

The amendments clarify the distinction. between changes in accountlng estimates -and changes in accounting policies. and
correction. of errors, It has aiso been clarified how entities use- measurement {echniques and inpufs to develop accountisig
estimates. _

The amendments had no inipact on the Company's standalone financial statements.

2.8.2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendment aims to replace the: requ:rernent for entities o dlsclose their. mgmf‘cant accounting.policies with a requirement 1o
disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies -and guidance on how entities. apply the concept of materlallty

The amendment has had an impact on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the.Company’s financial statements.

2.8.3 Peferred Tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction- amendment to Ind AS 12
The amendment narrows the scope of the-initial re¢ognition éxception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to.equal taxable and deductible temporary dl_fferences_




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes fo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3.1 Praperty, piant and eguipment

Property, plant and equiprment (PPE) is recognised when it is prebable that future economic benefits associated: with the. item wil}
flow to the Company and.the cost of the-item can be measured reliably: PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed,
if-any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative iripairment, if any. Cost includes professional fees refated to the acqmsmon of
PPE if it meets the cost criteria which is directly attributable to the the asset aquired.

Depreciation / amortization is tecognised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of respective assets.as under.

Category of Assets Useful Life

Computer Hardware 3 years

The estimated useful lives, Tesidual vaiues and depreciation method are: reviewed ‘at the .end-of each reporting period,. with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

An item of property; piant-and equipment is.derecognised upen disptsal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continuéd use of the assef. Any .gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement- of an item of property. plant. and

equ:pment is determined as the différence between the salés proceeds and the carrying-amount of the ‘asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

3.2. Intangible

Intangible assets are recognised when’ it is. probable that thefuture economic benefits that-are attributable to the asset will flow to
the enterprise and the cost of fhe asset can be measured rellebly lntanglble assets are stated at onglnal cost net of tax/duty. credits
availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment.

Intangible assets are amortised on sfraight line basis over the estimated useful life of 3 years, The method of amortisation -and
useful life are reviewed at the end of each accounting year with the effect of any changes in the estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Amortisation on impaired assets is provided by adjusting the amortisation charge in the remaining periods so as {o.allocate the
asset's revised carrying amount over its remaining useful life. '

Anintangible asset is derecognised on disposal,. or' when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
fosses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net dlsposal proceeds and.the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in'profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

3.3. Impairment of financial instruments

Overview of the Expected CGredit Loss (ECL) principle

The Company records allowance -far ECL for all Ioans, other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan
gomrmitments and financial guarantee contracts {in thls section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’). Equity instruments are not
subjectto-impairment under nd AS 109,

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value of credit losses. Credit loss is the difference between all’ contractual
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
(i.e. all cash shortfalis}, discounted at the original EIR {or credit-adjusted ‘effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
|mpa|red financiat assets} The Company estimates cash flows by considering ali contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example prepayment; extension, call and simitar options) through the expected life of that ﬁnanma[ lnstrument

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal fo the lifetime ECL if the: credit risk on that
financial inst_ru’rn_erif has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrament has not.increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL. 12-month ECL are portion of the life-time ECL and: represent the. lifetime- cash shortfalls that will. result if defauli
oceurs within the 12 months- after the reporting date and thus, are not.cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC'PRIVATE LIMITED

: Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
A loss allowance for lifetime ECL is required for a financial instrument if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased

significantly since initial recognition. For all other financial instruments, ECLs are measured at an amount equal to the 12- -monith
ECL.

Impairment losses and feleases are accouinted for and disclosed separately from madification losses or gains that:are accounted
for as an adjustment of the financizal asset's gross carrying value.

The Company. has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of edch reporting period, of whether a financial
mstruments credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring
over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Based on the above process, the Company..categorise_sits joans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as described below:

» Stage 1~ Assets upto 30 days of principal / interest overdue. '

- Stage 2 - (a) Assets with principal / interest past due between 31 fo 90 days (b) Assets-where credit rigk has increased
significantly basis qualitative assessient of the borrower. S

+ .Stage 3 - {d) Non- performlng assets {credit impaired assets) with. principal finterest past due more than 90 days. (b) cases where
frauds. have been identified {c) Loan accounts where principal andfor interest were past due for more than 90 days along with all
other loans of such customer, continue t¢ be classified as stage 3, till overdug across all loan accounts are cleared.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within
the scope of Ind AS 18 and loans: under short term financing, the Company always measures the loss aliowance at-an amount
equal to fifetime ECL. Further, for the purpese of measuring lifetime ECL allowance for trade recewables the Company has used a
practical expedient as permitted Under Ind AS 109.

This ECL allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into aceount historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-loeking information.

The impairment requitements for the' récognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally apphed to debt instruments at

FVOCI except that the loss allowance Is recognised in OCI and is not reduced from the carrying amount in the Restated Summary
Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

The Fihancial assets for which the Campany has no reasonable. expectations of recovering either-the entire outstanding amount, or

a proportion thereof, the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered a (partialy derecognition of the
F_nanmal asset.

Wrife off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Company has no reasonable expectatsons of recovering the financial asset
(either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Company determings that the borfower does not have assets. or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write=off, A write-off constitutes-a
dérecognitioh event. The Company may apply enforcement activities to i nancial assets written off. Recoveries resulting fram the
Company’s enforcament activities will result in impairment. reversals.

3:4. Off-setting of financial instruments

Financial assets arid ljabiiities are offset and the net amoint is presented in the balance sheet where there is-a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setile on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability.
simultaneously.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3.5. Impairment on non-financial assets

As at the end of gach year, the Company reviews the cairying amount of its non'ﬁna‘nCiél asseis to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment.loss.

An asset is considered as impaired when on the balance. sheet date there are indications of impairment in the carrying amiount of
the assets; or where appllcable the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount {i.e. the higher
of the assets’ net selling price and. value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to the level of recoverable amount and the
reduction is.recognised as an impairment loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss 'subsequently reverses; the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased 1o the
révised estimate of it$ recoverable amount, but so that the incrsased cartying amount does not exceed theé carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment Ioss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal ef an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. ' '

3.6. Revenue Recognition

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obiigation is measured at the amount of transaction price {net of variable
cansideration) allocated ta that perfermance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is nét of variable
consideration on account of various discounts and schemes offered by Company aspart of the contract.

a} Interest ncome

The Company recognises interest income using effective interest rate {EIR} on all financial assets subsequently measured -upder
amartised cost ar fair value through othier comprehénsivé income (FVOCH). EIR is calculated by considering all costs and incomes
attributable to acquisition of & financial ‘asset or assumption of ‘a financial liability and it represents a rate that exsctly discounts
estimated future -cash paymentsz‘recelpts through the expected life of the financial assetfinancial liability to the gross carrying
amount of a-financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

The Company calculates interest income by applying-the EIR te the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired ‘assets. In case of credlt-:mpalred financial assefs, the Company recognises interest income on the amortised cost net of
impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no fonger creditimpaired, the Company reverts fo calculating
interest income on a gross basis, '

The c_a_!cul_ation of the EIR includes all fees paid or recejved between parties to the contract that are incremental and. directly
attributabie to the specific lending arrangement, transaction vosts; and all other premiums or discounts. For finaricial assets at
FVTPL, transaction costs are reco_gn'ised in profit or loss, at initial recognition,

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is measured at transaction price 1.e. the amount of consideration fo which the The- Gompany expects fo be entitied in
exchange-for transferring promised goodsor services to the customer; excluding ameunts collected on behlaf of third pariles. The
Company considers the terms of the contracts and its.customary business practices to determine the: transaction price. Where the
consideration promised is variable, the- Company excludés the estimates of variable ¢onsideration that are constrained. The
Cormpany applies the five step approach for recognition of revenue:

i. Identification of contract(s) with customers

ii.. Identification of the separate performance obligations in the contract

iii. Determination of transaction price _ _

iv. Allocat{on of transaction price to the separate-performance obligatios

v. Recognition of revenue when {or as) each performance obfigation is satisfied

c) Other Income
Other fees represent documentation charges, ACH/ECS swap c¢harges; cheque bouncing charges and penal interest charges.
These are recognised as income when the-amounts become due andthere is no uncertainty in realisation.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025.

3.7 Leases

The Company evaluates each-contract or arrangement, whether it qualifies as lease as defined under Ind AS 1186,

The Company as a Jessee
The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves—
a) the use of an identified asset; _
b) the right to obtain substantially ali the economic benefits from-use of the identified assst, and
c) the ri_g_h't to direct the use of the identified asset.

Th_e _Compa_ny_ at the: inception of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use {Rol)) asset at cost and a corresponding. lease:
liability; for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short.term) and
low-value assets.

Certain lease arrangements includes the option ta extend or terminate the sase before the end-of the lease term. ROU assets ahd
lease Ilabllltles includes. these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments made
at'_ or before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives. received. Subseguently, the right-
of-use assets is measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation and accumulated irnpairment losses, if-any. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful jife of
right-of-use assets.

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes ‘in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the-purpose of impairment testing, the recoverabfe amount (i.e. the higher of the fairvalue
less cost to sell and-the value-in-use}is determined on an individual asset basis. unless the asset does not generate. c_as_h flows that
are largely independent of those from othier assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating
Unit:{CGU) to which the assst bslongs.

For lease liabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the inferest rate implicit inthe lease, if that rate is readily determined, if
that rate is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.

The Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of [ease liability as an adjustment fo the right-of-use-assets, Where
the carryirig amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement.of the lease
||ab|I|ty. the Company recognizes. any remainirig ameunt of the re-measurement in the-Restated Summary Statément of Profit.and
Loss (mcIudmg other comprehensive income).

For short-term and jow value leases, the Company recegnizes-the ledse paymerits as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term:
3.8 Borrowing costs

Interest expenses is calculated: using EIR and calculation of the EIR includes alf fees paid that are incremental and directly
attributable 1o the issue of a financial liability. EIR is calculated by considering all costs attributable to acquisition of a financial
|fab|!|ty and it represents a rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the e_xp_ec_te_d life of the financial
liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial liability.

All other bo’r_rowing costs which are nqt.incre_mentai' and not directiy attributable to the issue of a financial Iiab'iii_ty_are recognised in
the Restated Summary. Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive incomé) in the period in which they are
incurred. ' '




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3.9 Income Tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of he tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and defeired tax are recognised in
the Statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income.or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in. other comprehensive income. or directly in equity
respectively.

a) Current Tax

The tax current!y payable is based on the taxable profit for the year of the Company. Taxable profit.differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxabie or deductible in other vears
and items that are never _ta_x_able or deductible. The current tax is _calc_uiat_ed using applicable tax rates that have been epacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amoints used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried
forward tax losses-and tax credits, if any.

is not a bu_sl_ness co_mbmatlor_\.and that affects nel_ther accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the trar_;s_actlon

Deferred tax-assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can
be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of
losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the-extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary. dlfferences or there
is other convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available' against which such deferred tax asset can bie realised.

Deferred tax assets,unrecognised or recoghised, are reviewed at each reporting date and gre recognised/reduced to the extent that
it is probable/no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be. realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of defe_rred' tax reflects the tax consequences that would -follow-_frqm the manner in-which the Cgmpany expects,
at-the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount-of its-assets and Fabilities. Deferred tax assets and .Iiabiliti_e_s.a_re offset
if there is'a legally enforceable right to- offset-current tax liabiiities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority:

3.10 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised only-when:

a) company has a present obligation {Iegal or constructive) as-a result of a past event; and

b) it is probable that.an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

c) a réliable estimate-can be made of the amount of the obligation

These are reviewed at each balance:sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best ¢stimates.

Further, {ong ternt provisions.are determined by discountlng the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of
the dfscount is recognised as finance cost. A provision ‘for onerous contracis is measured at the present valie of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract -and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provisioh is
established; the Company recognises any |mpa|rment loss on the assets associated with-that contract.

Contingent liability is disclesed in case of:

a) a present obligation arising from past events, when itis not probable that-an outflow of resoufces will be required to seitle the
obligation; and _ _ _

b) a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3.11 Commitments

Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as follows:

a) estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for;

b) uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid;

c) other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material and relevant in the opinion of management,

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business are not disclosed to avoid excessive
details.

3.12 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash at banks and on hand, demand deposits with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance
sheet.

3.13 Financial Instruments

a) Recognition and initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

All the financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value. A financial asset or financial liability which is not
recognised at Fair Value through Profit and Loss is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in Statement
of Profit or Loss.

b) Financial Assets - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Classification

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

- Amortised Cost;

- Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI); or

- Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL.:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding

A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

However, on initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) (designated as FVOCI - equity
investment). This election is made on an investment by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial
recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset as at FVTPL that otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI, if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal.and interest (SPP()

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition, ‘Interest’ is
defined as consideraticn Tor the time value of money and for the credi risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during
a particular period of time and for othér basic lending risks and costs {e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit
margin:

In assessing whether the coritractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the: financial asset con{a_ins a contractual term that could
change the timing or ambunt of contraciual cash flows.such that it would not meet this condition. tn making this-assessment; the
Company considers;

— gontingent events that would change the amount 6r timing of cash flows;

~terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, includirig variable inferest rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

~ terms that limit the Company's claim to ¢ash flows from specified assets.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequentfy measured at .amortised cost using the EIR method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment {osses.. Interest incomie; foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss 'on derecogriition is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Debt investments measured at FVOCI: These gssets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under efféctive
interest method, foreign exchange gams and losses and impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognlsed in OCI. On derecognition, gains and lesses accumulated in OC|-are- reclassified to the
Statement of Profit-and Loss.

Equity invesiments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequenily measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income-in the
Statement of Profit and Loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and-Loss.

Financial assets at _F_VTPL:‘ 'These -assets are.s_ub_seq_l._iently. measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, .any interest or dividend
income, are recognised and are presented separately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

c) Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Debt and equity instriments issued by the Company are classified as eitherfinancial liabilities or as equity in-accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial liabifity and an equity instrument,

Financial liabilities -are classified as measured at amortised' cost or FVTPL. Financial Iia_bi!iti_es-at' FVTPL are fmeasured at fair value
and net gains-and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit-and Loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method: Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recogriised in the Statement of F’roflt and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d} Derecognition :

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in ‘a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and. rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company heither transfers ror retains substantiaily all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset. ' ' '

if the Company enters into transactions whereby it fransfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retéins either -al! or
substantially all of the risks and rewards. of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED:
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

3.14 Segments

Based on “Management Approach” as defined by Ind AS 108, The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
“Operating Segments”. Operating segments are reporied in & manner consistent-with the internal reporting provided to the CODM,
The accountirg policies adopted for segment reporting are in conformity with the -accounting policies adopted for the: Company.

3.15 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal.timeé betwsen acquisition of asséts and their realisatton
in cash or cash equwalents the Company has detennlned its operatmg cycle as 12 maonths.

3.16 Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Shart-term-employes benefits-are expensed as-the related service is provided at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in éxchange for that service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the: Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a resuit of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably. These benefits include performance incentive and compensated absences which are expected to-ocecur within
twelve months after the end of the peried ir which the employee renders the related service,

Defined Contribution Plan

Payments {o defined contribution plans are recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year when employees
have rendered service entiting them to the contributions. The Company pays. provident fund contributions to publicly administered
provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the centributions have been paid.
The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plan and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit-expense
when they are due. Prepaid contribittions are recognised as an asset 1o the extent that-cash refund or a reduction in the future
paymeant is avallable.

3.17 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is caloulated by dividirg the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after
deductlng attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the perlod!year




4. Cash And Cash Equivalents

AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:

- In Current Accounts 151,62 569,85
- In Fixed Deposit (with original maturity of 3 months or less) 953.02 1,926.79
Total 1,104.64 2,496.64

5. Loans

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

At amortised cost

Term loans

Total — Gross (A)

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 19)
Total — Net (A)

(a) Secured by tangible assets

(b) Unsecured

Total - Gross (B)

Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 19)
Total — Net (B)

() Loans in India
Public Sector
Others
Total - Gross (C)
Less: Impairment loss allowance (refer note 19)
Total — Net (C)
(I} Loans outside India
Total- Net (C) (I+11)

1,346.24 17.21
1,346.24 17.21

10.13 0.07
1,336.11 17.14
1,346.24 17.21
1,346.24 17.21

10.13 0.07
1,336.11 17.14
1,346.24 17.21
1,346.24 17.21

10.13 0.07
1,336.11 17.14
1,336.11 17.14

these are held at amortised cost.

The table below shows the credit quality and the exposure to credit risk based on the period-end stage classification,

5.1 The business model of the company is to hold the assets for generating contractual cash flows on account of principal and interest and hence

As at March 31, 2025

Category Assets category Gross Carrying Expected Net Carrying Probability of Default
Amount Credit Loss Amount

Stage 1 - High quality assets Loan 1,346.24 10.13 1,336.11 0.05% to 37.08%

Stage 2 — Assets including

restructured assets for which there is Loan - - -

significant increase in credit risk

Stage 3 - Credit impaired assets Loan - - -

Total 1,346.24 10.13 1,336.11

As at March 31, 2024

Category Assets category Gross Carrying Expected Net Carrying Probability of Default
Amount Credit Loss Amount

Stage 1 - High quality assets Loan 17.21 0.07 17.14 0.05% to 37.08%

Stage 2 - Assets including

restructured assets for which there is Loan - - -

significant increase in credit risk

|Stage 3 - Credit impaired assets Loan - - -

Total 17.21 0.07 17.14




An analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL allowances in relation to loans:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount opening
balance

Transfer during the period
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

On new credit exposure during the
period, net of repayments
Amounts written off

17.21

1,329.03

17.21

1,329.03

Gross carrying amount closing balg

1,346.24

- 1,346.24

{INR in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

Gross carrying amount opening
balance

Transfer during the period
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

On new credit exposure during the
period, net of repayments
Amounts written off

17.21

Gross carrying amount closing balq

- 17.21

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2025

Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

ECL allowance - opening balances

Transfer during the period
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

On new credit exposure during the
period, net of repayments
Amounts written off

10.06

0.07

ECL allowance - closing balance

- 10.13

(INR in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2024

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3 Total

ECL allowance - opening balances

Transfer during the period
Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers to Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

On new credit exposure during the
period, net of repayments
Amounts written off

0.07

0.07

ECL allowance - closing balance

0.07

0.07

# The ECL shown above is computed on EAD which comprises of the gross carrying amount

adjusted for the following amounts:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Undisbursed Loan

1.031.18

5.2 There are no loans which are granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013),
either severally or jointly with any other person that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

7. Others Financial Assets

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Security Deposits il 2.81 2.74
Total 2.81 2.74
8A. Current tax (Liability) /Assets (net)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Advance tax and tax deducted at source 14.96 7.07
Total 14.96 7.07
8B. Deferred tax Assets (net)
(INR in lakhs)
Balance as at Chargel(credit) to profit . Balance as at
Particulars 01 April 2024 and loss Charge/(credit) to OCl| 54 4. /ch 2025
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:
- Depreciation and amortisation 3.13 29.44 - 32.56
- Losses to be carry forwarded to future years 5.88 38.77 - 44 .65
Deferred Tax Assets 9.00 68.21 - 77.24

Particulars

Balance as at
11 January 2023

Chargel(credit) to profit
and loss

Charge/(credit) to OCI

Balance as at
31 March 2024

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:

- Depreciation and amortisation 3.13 - 3.13
- Losses to be carry forwarded to future years 5.88 - 5.88
Deferred Tax Assets 9.00 - 9.00
Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss

(INR in lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
a) Current Tax:
In respect of current year - -
b)Deferred Tax
In respect of current year origination and reversal of temporary differences 77.21 9.00
Total Income tax recognised in Statement of profit and loss 77.21 9.00
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AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2025

17.Interest Income

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year ending

For the year ending

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Interest on Loans 73.31 0.33
Interest Income on fixed deposits with bank 66.78 79.22
Total 140.08 79.54

18.Fees and Commission income

For the year ending

For the year ending

RIS March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Commission Income 0.94 -
Other fees and charges 1.92 0.04
Total 2.86 0.04

income)

Set out below is the revenue from contracts with customers and reconciliation of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive

Geographical markets
- India
- Outside India

2.86

0.04

Total

2.86

0.04

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time
Services transferred over time

2.86

0.04

Total

2.86

0.04

19.Impairment of financial instruments

Note: For receivable balances against the income, refer note no 6.

Particulars

For the year ending
March 31, 2025

For the year ending
March 31, 2024

On financial assets measured at amortised cost

Expected credit loss provision 9.94 0.07
Bad debts written off - -
Total 9.94 0.07

20.Employee benefits expense

Particulars

For the year ending
March 31, 2025

For the year ending
March 31, 2024

Salaries, Bonus and other allowances 78.86 41.10
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Funds 143 0.83
Staff Training and Welfare Expenses 0.09 0.81
Total 80.38 42.75




21. Other expenses

Particulars For the year ending For the year ending
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Information Technology expenses 65.30 =
Rates and Taxes 38.41 6.72
Inter-company recharges 47.23 24.40
Legal & Professional Fee 11.91 3.21
Membership & Subscription 12.66 14.99
Rent 11.42 9.90
Auditors' Remuneration (refer note below) 7.50 0.50
Advertisement expenses 5.94 -
Exchange loss- Realised 2.56 -
Travelling and Conveyance 1.77 -
Bank Charges 0.98 0.11
ESign Operations 0.75 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.22 0.28
Storage Fees 0.02 -
Total 206.67 60.11

Payments to Auditors

For the year ending

For the year ending

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) For audit and limited reviews 7.50 0.50
Total 7.50 0.50
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AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

(i)

(@)

(iii)

Related Party Disclosure:
As'per Ind A8 24 — "Related Party Disclosures”, following disclosure are made:

Names of related parties and description of Relationship

Holding Company
Avanse Financial Service Ltd

Directors _

Mr. Amit Galnda - Whole Time Director

Mr. Yogesh Rawat - Director

Mr. Vikrant Gandhi  Director 8 CFO (w.&.f. 23-02-2024)
Mr. Vineet Mahajan - Director (resigned w.e.f: 30-09-2024)

Detaijls of transactions with refated parties

(INR In lakhs)

|Name of the related party

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Avans"e'F'inanciaI Service Ltd
Subeription to Equity Share Capital
Reimbursement of Expenses

2,873.79

167.06

2,673.79
113.70

(INR in lakhs)

Balances as at March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Avanse Financial Service Ltd

Subcription to Equity Share Capital 2,673.79 2,673.79
Trade payable 167.06 113.70

25,1 There are no provision for daubiful debts/ advances or amounts written off or written back for debts due from/ due to related

parties.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to-the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

{INR in lakhs)

March 31, 2025 March-31, 2024
. Within 12 After 12 Within 12 After 12 .
Sr. No. |Assats months months Total menths mionths Total
{1) |Financial Assets o _ _ _
{a} |Casharid cash equivalents 1,104.64 - 1,104.64 2,486:54 - 2,496.64
(b} |Trade receivabies. 0.95 R 0,95 - - -
(c) |Loans _ 11.49 1,324,62 1,336.11 b.27 16.88 17.14
{d} |Otherfinanclial assets - 2.81 2,81 -~ 2,74 274
1,117.07 1,327.43 2,444.51 2,496.41 18.62 2,516.52
{2) |Non-financial Assets
(@) (Currenttax assets (net) 7.26 T30 14.96 - 707 7.07
{B) |Property, plant and equipment - 3.14 3.14 - 13 1,31
fc) cher'ihténgible- assets - 198:33 188.33 - 243,12 213.12
(d) |Other non-financiz} assets 0.00 24.27 24.27 7.54 41.06 _AB.60
7.26 233.44 240._70_ 7.54 262.56 270.1
Total 1,124.34 1,560.87 2,685,21 2,504.45 282,18 2.786.62
LIABILITIES
{1} |Firancial Liabilities
(@) |Trade payables 184.89 - 194.89 11370 - 113.70
{b} |Otherfinancial liabiliies 10.82 - 10.82 - - -
Total FInanclal Liabilities 205,71 - 205,71 11370 - 113.70
{2) |Non-Financial Liabilities
{a} |Provisions 2.50 - 2.50 - - -
(k) |Cther non-finangial liabilities. 14.68 - 14.68 0,22 - 0.22
Total Non-FinanciaI_Liabiiities_ 17.18 w 17.18 0.22 . 0.22
Total 222,89 - 222.89 113.92 - 113.92 |




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

27
271

27.2

Financial Instruments

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders
through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to maximize shareholders value and minimise cost of capital. The Company manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments in the light of changes in economic environment and the requirements of the financial covenants.

Fair Value

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and
measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the interim purpose financial statements. To
provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three
levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level is as follows.

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market.If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As on 31 March 2025, the Company had no financial instruments that were recognised and measured at fair value.

27.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:

The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instruments that are measured at
amorlised cost in the interim financial statements. Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables as on March 31, 2025
approximate the fair value because of their short-term nature. Difference between carrying amount and fair values of other financials assets and other
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the periods presented.

As at March 31, 2025 Carrying value Fair value Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financials Assets
Loans 1,336.11 - - 1,336.11 1,336.11
As at March 31, 2024 Carrying value Fair value Total
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financials Assets
Loans 17.14 - - 17.14 17.14

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured
at fair value in the Company's interim purpose financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions
explained in notes.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash flows using
actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties' credit risk.

Off balance sheet
Estimated fair value of off balance sheet positions in form of undrawn commitment are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on
contractual committed cash flows, using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties' credit risk




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

27.4 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk ;

= Operational risk ;

= Liquidity risk ;

« Forex risk ; and

= Price risk

Risk management framework

Risk management forms an integral part of the Company's business. As a lending institution, the Company is exposed to several risks related to the
lending business and operating environment. The Company has established risk management and audit frameworks to identify, assess, monitor and
manage various types of internal and external risks. This framework is driven by the Board through the Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee
and the Asset Liability Management Committee. Risk Management Committee inter alia is responsible for review, identification, monitoring and
providing oversight on management of risk of the Company.

ii)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any party to abide by the terms and conditions of any contract, principally the failure to
make required payments of amounts due to the Company. In its lending operations, the Company is principally exposed to credit risk.

The credit risk management structure includes separate credit policies and procedures for the Company's business. The credit policies outline the type
of products that can be offered, customer categories, the targeted customer profile, prudential limits, exceptional approval metrics etc. and the credit
approval process and limits. Credit approvers and relationship managers are responsible for ensuring adherence to these policies.

The Company has structured and standardized credit approval processes which include comprehensive credit risk assessment encompassing analysis
of relevant quantitative and qualitative information to ascertain the credit worthiness of the borrower. The credit appraisal process includes
identification of underlying risks, mitigating factors and residual risks associated with the customer.

Sanctioning authority for credit exposures are based on defined Delegation of Credit Authority. The delegated powers are based on a Committee
approach. For cases sanctioned as per delegation of authority, after completion of all formalities by the borrower, a loan agreement is entered into with
the borrower.

The Company measures, monitors and manages credit risk at an individual borrower level and at the portfolio level for non-retail borrowers. The credit
risk for retail borrowers is managed at the portfolio level. Periodic analysis of the credit portfolio is conducted and necessary corrective measures are

The Company’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categories:

Category Description Basis for recognising expected credit losses
Stage 1 High quality assets 12 Month ECL
Stage 2 Assets for which there is significant Lifetime ECL
increase in credit risk
Stage 3 Credit impaired assets Lifetime ECL

The key elements in calculation of ECL are as follows:

PD - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the
assessed period, if the facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio. The PD has been determined based on historical
behaviour of the book & roll rates for retail loans.

EAD - The estimated credit exposure at point of default

LGD - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any collateral. It is usually
expressed as a percentage of the EAD. The LGD is determined based on valuation of collaterals and other relevant factors.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate internal processes, people or systems, fraud, or from external events. The Company
focuses on management and control of operational risks through a comprehensive system of internal controls and monitoring performance of each
function against defined thresholds

Operational risk management comprises identification and assessment of risks and controls, new products and process approval framework,
measurement through operational risk incidents, monitoring through key risk indicators and mitigation through process and control enhancement.




iii)

iv)

(v
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AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the current and prospective risk arising out of an inability to meet financial commitments as they fall due, through available cash flows or
through the sale of assets at fair market value. It includes both, the risk of unexpected increases in the cost of funding an asset portfolio at appropriate
maturities and the risk of being unable to liquidate a position in a timely manner at a reasonable price.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having access to funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit lines. Given the need to fund diverse products, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability
under committed credit lines to meet obligations when due. Management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash equivalents vis-a-vis
projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans and maintenance of Balance Sheet
liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.

We manage liquidity risk in accordance with our Asset Liability Management Policy. This policy is framed as per the current regulatory guidelines and is
approved by the Board of Directors. The Asset Liability Management Policy is reviewed periodically to incorporate changes as required by regulatory
stipulation or to realign the policy with changes in the economic landscape. The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Company formulates and
reviews strategies and provides guidance for management of liquidity risk within the framework laid out in the Asset Liability Management Policy.

Exposure to liquidity risk
The following are the details of Company's remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities and assets at the reporting date. The amounts are

(INR in lakhs)
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2025 Total 0 -1 year 1 -3 years 3 -5 years More than 5 years
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 194.89 194.89 - - -
Other financial liabilities 10.82 10.82 - - -
Total 205.71 205.71 - - -
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,104.64 1,104.64 - = -
Loan 2,845.61 24.70 243.46 699.12 1,878.33
Trade receivables 0.95 0.95 - - -
Other financial assets 2.81 - 2.81 - -
Total 3,954.01 1,130.29 246.27 699.12 1,878.33
Contractual cash flows

March 31, 2024 Total 0 -1 year 1 -3 years 3 -5 years More than 5 years
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 113.70 113.70 - - -
Other financial liabilities 0.22 0.22
Total 113.92 113.92 - - -
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,496.64 2,496.64 - - s
Loans 17.14 0.27 - - 16.88
Other financial assets 2.74 - - 2.74 -
Total 2,516.52 2,496.91 - 2.74 16.88

The gross inflows disclosed in the above table represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows relating to financial liabilities held for risk
management purposes and which are not usually closed out before contractual maturity.

Foreign Currency Risk
United States Dollar (USD) is the functional currency of the Company, thus the Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign currency expenses.

Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to any other price risk.

The liability of the holding company in the Company is limited to its investment in equity shares of the Company. Further there are no other
commitments or fund-based commitment by the holding company to the Company.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
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Contingent liabilities, commitments and legal claims

Contingent liabilities
The company has no contingent liabilities as at the balance sheet date.

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs. 9.51
Lakhs. (FY24 Rs. 76.73 Lakhs)

Estimated amount of sanction undisbursed amount to be paid of Rs. 1,032.46 Lakhs. (FY24 Rs 29.86 Lakhs)

Legal claims
There are no legal claims outstanding against the company as at March 31, 2025.

Other statutory information:

During the current year,

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company has not been declared as a Wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the
statutory period.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or;

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act
read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017

The Company does not has any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company do not have any transactions with struck off companies.




AVANSE GLOBAL FINANCE IFSC PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025

During the period, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters,
directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly
with any other person (a) repayable on demand or (b) without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

k The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.
| There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.
m  The Company has not paid any dividend during the period.
31 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company is not required to comply with section 135 of the Companies Act with respect to Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) for the period.
32  Concentration of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) including total exposure to top five NPAs
There are no NPAs during the period.
33  Details on the registration/license/ authorization obtained from any financial sector regulators
The Company has not obtained license from any other financial sector regulator.
34 Disclosure of penalties imposed by any IFSCA and other regulators.
During the period, there were no penalties imposed by IFSCA and other regulators.
35  The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 25, 2025.
36  There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment/disclosure in these Restated

Summary Statements.
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